
Lowell Joint School District         
11019 Valley Home Avenue, Whittier, CA 90603     
 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES    
September 9, 2024 – 7:30 p.m. 

 
AGENDA 

 
I. Call to Order 
 

6:30 p.m. 
 

Lowell Joint School District Character Education and Patriotic Education Focus of the 
Month: 

• Character Trait: Resilience - The process and outcome of successfully adapting 
to difficult or challenging life situations; toughness and flexibility. 

• Patriotic Focus: USA Constitution 
• Honoring Character & Patriotism In Action: 911 Remembrance, “We the 

People…” media 

INFORMATION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A. Comments from the Public 
 

INFORMATION 

1. Board Agenda Items:  Any member of the audience may speak to any agenda 
item by submitting a “Presentation Card” (supply located on the table near 
double exit doors).  Please hand the completed card to the secretary. When 
the item is considered by the Board, individuals submitting presentation 
cards will be called upon prior to Board action.  Speakers must limit their 
comments to three (3) minutes.  The Board shall limit the total time for public 
input on each item to 30 minutes.  With Board consent, the president may 
increase or decrease the time allowed for public presentation, depending on 
the topic and the number of persons wishing to be heard.  

 
2. Topics Not on Agenda:  Anyone in attendance may address any issue by 

following the same identification process as shown in I-A-1 above. Since the 
Board cannot take action on items which are not on the agenda, such items 
will be referred to the Superintendent for handling.  Individuals interested in 
speaking to items which are not on the agenda will be called upon under Item 
IV. 

 

 

B.   Closed Session  
 

6:30 p.m. 

1. Pupil Personnel Matters/Advice from Legal Counsel – Existing and 
Anticipated Litigation (Disclosure of Case Name Would Jeopardize 
Potential Settlement Negotiations)/Real Property/Liability 
Claims/Negotiations/ Public Employee Appointments – Discipline – 
Dismissal – Release (Government Code Section 54957)/ 
Employer/Employee Relations 

 

 

2. Public Employee Negotiations – Certificated School Employees 
Association (LJEA)/ Classified School Employees Association (CSEA); 
Agency Negotiator: Mr. Coombs  
 

 

 
 



Meeting of the Board of Trustees 
September 9, 2024  

Page 2 
 

3.  Superintendent’s Evaluation (Pursuant to Government Code Section 
54957) 

 

 

C.   Regular Session 
 

 

Approximately 
7:30 p.m. 

II.          Preliminary Procedural – Board President 
 

 

A. 9-11 Remembrance 
 

 

B. Salute to the Flag – Macy Students 
 

 

C. Reporting Out Action (if any) Taken in Closed Session 
 

 

D. Introductions and Welcome of Guests 
 

 

E. Comments from the Public  
 

1. Board Agenda Items:  Any member of the audience may speak to any agenda 
item by submitting a “Presentation Card” (supply located on the table near 
double exit doors).  Please hand the completed card to the secretary.  When 
the item is considered by the Board, individuals submitting presentation 
cards will be called upon prior to Board action.  Speakers must limit their 
comments to three (3) minutes.   The Board shall limit the total time for 
public input on each item to 30 minutes.  With Board consent, the president 
may increase or decrease the time allowed for public presentation, depending 
on the topic and the number of persons wishing to be heard. 

 

INFORMATION 

2. Topics Not on Agenda:  Anyone in attendance may address any issue by 
following the same identification process as shown in II-E-1 above. Since 
the Board cannot take action on items which are not on the agenda, such 
items will be referred to the Superintendent for handling.  Individuals 
interested in speaking to items which are not on the agenda will be called 
upon under Item IV. 

 

 

F. Acknowledgement of Correspondence to the Board 
 

INFORMATION 

G. Approval of Agenda 
 

ACTION 

H. Approval of Minutes from the August 5, 2024, Regular Board Meetings 
 

ACTION 

III. Reports INFORMATION 
 

A. Timely Information from Board and Superintendent –    Board President                              
 

 

B. School Reports 
        (School Reports will be the First Meeting of the Month) (Macy Students) 

 

 



Meeting of the Board of Trustees 
September 9, 2024 
Page 3 

 
IV. Topics Not on the Agenda 

 
 

V.  General – Jim Coombs 
 

 

A. Resolution 2024/2025 No. 939 Proclaiming September 16 – 22, 2024, as 
“Constitution Week” 

ACTION/ 
(RESOLUTION) 

 
B. Resolution 2024/2025 No. 940 Designating October 2024 as “Character 

Education Month”  
ACTION/ 

(RESOLUTION) 
 

C. Resolution 2024/2025 No. 941 Commemorating The Rancho Starbuck 
Intermediate Library As The Fred and Beverly Schambeck Library  

ACTION/ 
(RESOLUTION) 

 
VI. Business Services – David Bennett 
 

 

A. Approval of 2023-24 Unaudited Actuals and Concurrent Approval of the Fund 
Balance Changes to the District’s 2024-25 Beginning Budgeted Balances 
 

                ACTION/ 
(RATIFICTION) 

B. Approval of Agreement with PQBids for Web-Based Program used to 
Prequalify Contractors 

ACTION/ 
(RATIFICATION) 

 
C. Approval of Deductive Change Order No. 1 from Erickson Hall 

Construction for Meadow Green Elementary School Electrical Project   
 

ACTION 
 

D. Resolution 2024/2025 No. 942 for Approval to Delegate Authority to the 
Superintendent of  Schools, or Designee, to Certify Documents, Act as a Liaison 
with the Office of Public School Construction and Staff to the State Allocation 
Board 
 

ACTION/ 
(RESOLUTION) 

 

E. Resolution 2024/25 No. 943 Gann Amendment Appropriations Limit ACTION/ 
(RESOLUTION) 

 
 

VII. Human Resources – Jim Coombs 
 

 

No Items Except on Consent  
 

 

VIII. Educational Services – Rhonda Overby 
 

 

No Items Except on Consent  
 

 

IX.        Administrative Services – Carl Erickson 
 

 

No Items Except on Consent  
 

 

X.        Consent Calendar 
 

 

 



Meeting of the Board of Trustees 
September 9, 2024  

Page 4 
 

Action by the Board in adoption of the “Consent Calendar” means that all items 
appearing in this section are adopted by one single motion, unless a Member of 
the Board or the Superintendent requests that any such item be removed from  
the “Consent Calendar” and voted upon separately.  Generally, “Consent 
Calendar” items are enacted upon in one action to conserve time and permit 
focus on other-than-routine matters. 

 

 

A. General - Jim Coombs 
 

 

1. Approval of Consultant Agreement with Brianna Velarde to Provide 
Graphic Design Work for District Communication of Programs and 
Facilities for the 2024/25 School Year 
 

ACTION 

2. Approval of Consultant Agreement with Summer Davis to provide support 
for the Lowell Sustainable Science Literacy Garden at the Maybrook 
Campus during 2024-2025 School Year 
 

ACTION/ 
(RATIFICATION) 

3. Authorization for approval of Memorandum of Understanding between 
Lowell Joint School District and Fullerton Joint Union High School 
District for student data sharing for the 2025/26 school year 
 

ACTION 
 
 

4. Approval of Agreement  with Behavior and Education Inc., a Nonpublic 
Nonsectarian Agency, to Provide additional direct Behavioral Intervention 
Services for select district students for the 2024/2025 School Year 

ACTION/ 
(RATIFICATION) 

 
 

5. Approval of Agreement  with Port View Preparatory a Nonpublic 
Nonsectarian Agency, to Provide additional direct Behavioral Intervention 
Services for select district students for the 2024/2025 School Year 
 

ACTION/ 
(RATIFICATION) 

 

B. Business Services – David Bennett 
 

 

1.  Purchase Order Listing Report/Check Register  2024/2025 #2 ACTION/ 
(RATIFICATION) 

 
2.  Consolidated Check Register Listing Report 2024/2025 #2 ACTION/ 

(RATIFICATION) 
 

3. Approval of Agreement with County of Los Angeles Sheriff’s Department 
to Provide Safety, Security and Order for District Special Events  

ACTION 
 
 

4. Approval of Professional Services Agreement, Hauffe Company Inc., 
(HCI) Program Management Services, District Wide   
 

ACTION/ 
(RATIFICATION) 

 
C. Human Resources – Jim Coombs 

 
 

1. Employer-Employee Relations/Personnel Report 2024/2025 #2 
Which Includes Hiring, Resignations, Contract Adjustments,  

ACTION/ 
(RATIFICATION) 

 



Meeting of the Board of Trustees 
September 9, 2024 
Page 5 
 

and Retirements for Certificated, Classified, and Confidential 
Employees 

 

 

D. Educational Services – Rhonda Overby 
 

 

1. Approval to Ratify Consultant Agreement with Summer Davis to 
provide Weekly Gardening Club Classes to Olita Elementary during the 
2024/25 School Year 
 

ACTION/ 
(RATIFICATION) 

 

2. Approval of Consultant Agreement with Nancy J. Kemp to Provide 
Consultation for Data Support at Rancho-Starbuck Intermediate School 
for the 2024/25 School Year  
 

ACTION 

3. Approval of Consultant Agreement with Joseph Hernandez to Provide 
Drumline Instruction at Rancho-Starbuck Intermediate School for the 
2024/25 School Year 
 

ACTION 

4. Approval of Consultant Agreement with Isabel Araiza to Provide 
Drumline Instruction at Rancho-Starbuck Intermediate School for the 
2024/25 School Year  
 

ACTION 

5. Approval of Consultant Agreement with Isaac Bahr to Provide 
Drumline Instruction at Rancho-Starbuck Intermediate School for the 
2024/25 School Year  

 

ACTION 

6. Approval of Consultant Agreement with Alejandro Lopez Jr. to Provide 
Drumline Instruction at Rancho-Starbuck Intermediate School for the 
2024/25 School Year  
 

ACTION 

7. Arrangements have been made with for Document Tracking Services to 
provide web-based management of District School Accountability Report 
Cards, Single Plan for Student Achievement, Comprehensive School 
Safety Plan and Local Education Agency Plan for a term of three (3) 
years effective September 1, 2024 

 

ACTION 

8. Approval of Agreement #17063 with Inside the Outdoors, Orange 
County Department of Education, to Provide a field trip to Shipley 
Gabrieliño Walk for the 3rd Grade Students of Olita Elementary School 
 

ACTION 
 
 

9. Approval of Agreement with Autism Learning Partners to provide 
ABA Therapy Services for a District Student During Expanded Learning 
Opportunities Program for the 2024-25 School Year 

 

ACTION 
 

XI.  Board Member/Superintendent Comments 
 

 

XII.      Adjournment ADJOURNMENT 
 
 



Meeting of the Board of Trustees 
September 9, 2024 

Page 6 
 

Recess and/or closed session to be called at the discretion of the Board.  Meetings of the Board shall adjourn at or 
before 11:00 p.m. unless approved by a majority vote of the Board. 

 
Materials related to this agenda submitted to the Board of Trustees less than 72 hours prior to the meeting are 
available for public inspection by contacting the Superintendent’s Office at 11019 Valley Home Avenue, Whittier, 
CA 90603, or (562) 902-4203 during normal business hours. 
 
The next scheduled Lowell Joint School District Board of Trustees Meeting is Monday, October 7, 2024. 
 

 







































































































   
Superintendent’s Comment: 
 
ADOPTION BY MAJORITY ROLL CALL VOTE. 
 

V-C1-1 

LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
September 9, 2024 
 
 
To: 
 

President Shackelford and Members, Board of Trustees 
 

 

From: 
 

Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools   

Subject: 
 

Resolution 2024/2025 No. 941 Commemorating The 
Rancho Starbuck Intermediate Library As The Fred and 
Beverly Schambeck Library  

ACTION/ 
(RESOLUTION) 

 
 
Fred and Beverly Schambeck devoted their professional and personal lives to the students and 
staff of the Lowell Joint School district for over 38 years.  Mr. Schambeck serving on the Board 
of Trustees for 38 years and Mrs. Schambeck serving as the Rancho-Starbuck Librarian for 40 
years.    
 
As an expression of the esteem in which Fred and Beverly Schambeck are held by the members 
of the Lowell Joint Community, the Rancho Starbuck Library is named in their honor and bears 
their names in recognition of their contributions to the students and staff of the Lowell Joint 
School District. 
 
Fred and Beverly represent true integrity in how they live and conduct their personal and 
professional lives, serving as role models for the entire Lowell Joint Community. 
 
The Board of Trustees is proud of the accomplishments of Fred and Beverly Schambeck and 
grateful for their dedicated service of the district and feels it is appropriate that these sentiments 
be publicly expressed by this commemoration and dedication. 
 
It is recommended that Resolution 2024/2025 No. 941 Commemorating The Rancho Starbuck 
Intermediate Library As The Fred and Beverly Schambeck Library, be approved, and that the 
Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the resolution. 
 
Attachment 
 
 

 





























    
Superintendent’s Comment: 
 
ADOPTION BY MAJORITY ROLL CALL VOTE. 
 

VI-E1-1 

LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
September 9, 2024 
 
 
 
To: 
 

President Shackelford and Members, Board of Trustees  

From: 
 

Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools  

Subject: 
 

Resolution 2024/25 No. 943 Gann Amendment 
Appropriations Limit 

                  ACTION/ 
(RESOLUTION) 

 
 

Government Code Section 7906(f) requires each school district to report the  
Gann Amendment Appropriations Limit to the Superintendent of Public Instruction annually.  
Each year, governing boards of school districts shall adopt a resolution identifying the actual 
appropriations limit for the preceding year as well as the estimated appropriations limit for 
the current year. Attached are calculations used in establishing the actual appropriations limit 
for 2023-24 and the estimated appropriations limit for 2024-25. 
 
Resolution 2024/25 No. 943 declares that the actual appropriations for 2023-24 in the 
District’s budget and the estimated appropriations for the 2024-25 budget do not exceed the 
limitations of Article XIII B (the Gann Amendment) of the California Constitution. 
 
It is recommended that Resolution 2024/25 No. 943 Gann Amendment Appropriations Limit 
be adopted, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary 
documents. 
 
 
DB/ds 
 
Attachment 
 

 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION 2024/25 No. 943 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT OF LOS ANGELES AND ORANGE 

COUNTIES, CALIFORNIA,  
GANN AMENDMENT APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT  

 

 
 WHEREAS, in November of 1979, the California electorate did adopt Proposition 4, 
commonly called the Gann Amendment, which added Article XIII-B to the California 
Constitution; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the provisions of that Article establish maximum appropriation limitations, 
commonly called “Gann Limits,” for public agencies, including school districts; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the District must establish a revised Gann limit for the 2023-24 fiscal year 
and a projected Gann Limit for the 2024-25 fiscal year in accordance with the provisions of Article 
XIII-B and applicable statutory law; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that this Board does provide public notice 
that the attached calculations and documentation of the Gann limits for 2023-24 at $15,760,845.17 
and for 2024-25 at $16,305,257.54 are made in accord with applicable constitutional and statutory 
law; 
 
 AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Board does hereby declare that the 
appropriations in the Budget for the 2023-24 and 2024-25 fiscal years do not exceed the limitations 
imposed by Proposition 4; 
 
 AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Superintendent provides copies of this 
resolution along with the appropriate attachments to interested citizens of this district.  
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint School 
District the 9th day of September, 2024. 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES:   
 
ABSTAIN:   
 
ABSENT:  
 
I, Jim Coombs, Secretary to the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint School District of Los 
Angeles and Orange Counties, California, hereby certify that the above and foregoing resolution 
was duly and regularly adopted by the said Board of Trustees at a regular meeting thereof held on 
the 9th day of September, 2024 and passed by a unanimous vote of those present. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 9th day of 
September, 2024. 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
Jim Coombs, Secretary to the Board of Trustees 







































































X-C1-1 

 
LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
September 9, 2024 

 
 
 

To: President Shackelford and Members, Board of Trustees 
 

 

From: 
 

Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools  

Subject: Employer-Employee Relations/Personnel Report 
2024/2025 #2 Which Includes Hiring, Resignations, 
Contract Adjustments, and Retirements for 
Certificated, Classified, and Confidential Employees 

ACTION/    
(RATIFICATION) 

 
 

The attached Employer-Employee Relations/Personnel Report 2024/2025 #2, which 
includes hiring, resignations, contract adjustments, and retirements for certificated, 
classified, and confidential employees has been completed without irregularities and in 
compliance with the law, District policy, administrative regulations, rules, procedures, and 
direction of the supervisor and all information has been fully disclosed. 
 
It is recommended that Employer-Employee Relations/Personnel Report 2024/2025 #2, 
which includes hiring, resignations, contract adjustments, and retirements for certificated, 
classified, and confidential employees, be ratified. 
 
 
Attachment 
 
 
JC/me 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

            
  
Superintendent’s Comment: 
 
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED. 



X-C1-2 

LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT 
EMPLOYER-EMPLOYEE RELATIONS/PERSONNEL REPORT 2024/25 #2 

 
September 9, 2024 

I. CERTIFICATED EMPLOYEES 
  
 

A. 2024/2025 Certificated Salaries 
 

 
NAME 

EFFECTIVE 
DATE 

CLASS/COL/ 
STEP 

 
SITE 

 
COMMENTS 

Oke, Melissa 08/12/2024 C5/S13 RS Correction of EER #11 2023-2024 
Fiscus, Riley 08/12/2024 C3/S3 EP Correction of EER #11 2023-2024 
Mosqueda, Irma 08/12/2024 C4/S8 JO Correction of EER #11 2023-2024 
Shaw, Shannon 08/12/2024 C5/S2 OL Correction of EER #11 2023-2024 

 
B. CHANGE OF STATUS 2024-2025** 

 

NAME EFFECTIVE 
DATE 

   END DATE SITE COMMENT 

Mena Hill, Maya 08/12/2024 08/23/2024 Olita (AB375) FMLA Parental Bonding Leave 
 
 

C.          EXTRA DUTY PAY/STIPENDS 

Robert Lauprecht 08/12/2024 05/30/2025 JO To be paid a Combination 5/6 Grade Teacher 

Stipend of $3000 for the 2023-2024 School 

Year 

Heather Pfaff 08/12/2024 05/30/2025 JO To be paid a Combination 1/2 Grade Teacher 

Stipend of $3000 for the 2023-2024 School 

Year 

Gunsalus, Lecia 

 

07/16/2024 08/07/2024 EP To be paid two days training Power Up 
Summer teaching assignment at the district 
office on July 16th & July 17th. Power 
Up Summer teaching assignment is July 24th – 
August 7th from 8:00 a.m. - 1:00 p.m. at El 
Portal at the rate of $50.00/hour  Total Hours: 
70 (two training days included) Not to exceed: 
$3,500.00. Correction of EER #10 2023-2024 

Gonzalez, Leslie 07/16/2024 08/07/2024 EP To be paid two days training Power Up 
Summer teaching assignment at the district 
office on July 16th & July 17th. Power 
Up Summer teaching assignment is July 24th – 
August 7th from 8:00 a.m. - 1:00 p.m. at El 
Portal at the rate of $50.00/hour  Total Hours: 
70 (two training days included) Not to exceed: 
$3,500.00. Correction of EER #10 2023-2024 

Jeffrey, Kim 07/16/2024 08/07/2024 EP To be paid two days training Power Up 
Summer teaching assignment at the district 
office on July 16th & July 17th. Power 
Up Summer teaching assignment is July 24th – 
August 7th from 8:00 a.m. - 1:00 p.m. at El 
Portal at the rate of $50.00/hour  Total Hours: 
70 (two training days included) Not to exceed: 
$3,500.00. Correction of EER #10 2023-2024 



X-C1-3 

Valdez, Michelle 

 

 

07/16/2024 08/07/2024 EP To be paid two days training Power Up 
Summer teaching assignment at the district 
office on July 16th & July 17th. Power 
Up Summer teaching assignment is July 24th – 
August 7th from 8:00 a.m. - 1:00 p.m. at El 
Portal at the rate of $50.00/hour  Total Hours: 
70 (two training days included) Not to exceed: 
$3,500.00. Correction of EER #10 2023-2024 

Castillo, Barbara 07/16/2024 08/07/2024 EP  Power Up Supervisor – at a rate not to 

exceed $561.08. Two days training Power Up 

at the district office on July 11th & July 12th 

and Power Up Session July 24th - August 7th. 

11 program days and 1 day of prep Correction 

of EER #10 2023-2024 

Wallace, Greg 08/12/2024 05/30/2025 RS  To be paid $150.00 per month, not to exceed 

$1,500.00 for serving as Share Robotics 

Coordinator. To be paid from Rancho Starbuck 

Donation Account 
 
D. * It is further recommended that these individuals be approved for substitute teaching at the rate of $200.00 per day 

and/or $50.00 an hour rate (not to exceed six hours) as applicable and to include: Professional Development, Saturday 
School, Site Support Duties, Intervention, and PowerSource, Power Source Summer Camp, ESY, Lowell Joint Youth 
Theater, Rancho Starbuck Performing Arts. 

 
**It is further recommended that the individuals listed in Certificated Salaries for 2024-2025 is approved to instruct in the Intervention 
Programs. The rate of pay is $50.00/hour and will be paid from Title I or LCFF Supplemental Grant Funds. 
**It is further recommended that individuals listed in Certificated Salaries for 2024-2025 serve as home school teachers, if needed, for the 
2024-2025 school year at a rate of $50.00/hour, not to exceed five hours per week, per student.  Mileage will be paid at the IRS Standard 
Mileage Rate for the 2024-2025 school year. 

 
E. Employment of substitutes effective 07/01/2024 for the 2024-2025 school year @ $200 per day and $100.00 per half day 

rate, $250.00 long term sub rate, and $50.00 per hour* (not to exceed six hours) as applicable and to include: 
professional development, Saturday school, site support duties, Intervention, PowerSource, Power Source Summer 
Camp, ESY, Lowell Joint Youth Theater, Rancho Starbuck Performing Arts. 
 

Alicia Flores Kimberly Rodrigues Sucel Duran Ashley Cortes Jazmine Aguirre Alexa Rosales 

Jenilee Migliorini Shine Sim    

 
F.     SUBSTITUTE CHANGE OF PAY 

 
NAME EFFECTIVE 

DATE 
END DATE SITE COMMENT 

Montemayor, Katleen 

 

 

07/16/2024 08/07/2024 EP To be paid two days training Power Up Summer teaching 
assignment at the district office on July 16th & July 17th. Power 
Up Summer teaching assignment is July 24th – August 7th from 
8:00 a.m. - 1:00 p.m. at El Portal at the rate of $50.00/hour  Total 
Hours: 70 (two training days included) Not to exceed: $3,500.00. 
Correction of EER #10 2023-2024 



X-C1-4 

Correa, Jose 

 

 

07/16/2024 08/07/2024 EP To be paid two days training Power Up Summer teaching 
assignment at the district office on July 16th & July 17th. Power 
Up Summer teaching assignment is July 24th – August 7th from 
8:00 a.m. - 1:00 p.m. at El Portal at the rate of $50.00/hour  Total 
Hours: 70 (two training days included) Not to exceed: $3,500.00. 
Correction of EER #10 2023-2024 

Mohler, Megan 

 

 

07/16/2024 08/07/2024 EP To be paid two days training Power Up Summer teaching 
assignment at the district office on July 16th & July 17th. Power 
Up Summer teaching assignment is July 24th – August 7th from 
8:00 a.m. - 1:00 p.m. at El Portal at the rate of $50.00/hour  Total 
Hours: 70 (two training days included) Not to exceed: $3,500.00. 
Correction of EER #10 2023-2024 

Fitzgerald, Sydney 07/01/2024 06/30/2025 DO To be paid  at the rate of $50 / hour NTE $6000 for Theater 
Instruction for Rancho Starbuck Performing Arts to be paid from 
Arts/LJSD Foundation Fund. 

Van Vliet, Ronita 07/01/2024 06/30/2025 DO To be paid at the hourly rate of $70.00 Speech Language and 
Pathologist Services 

Fitzgerald, Sydney 07/01/2024 06/30/2025 DO To be paid at the rate of $50 / hour NTE $8000 for Theater 
Instruction for Lowell Joint Youth Theater at all elementary 
school sites. To be paid from Arts LJSD Foundation Fund and 
ELOP Funds 

Emond, Corine 09/01/2024 06/30/2025 DO To be paid Long term rate of $250 daily as School 
Pscyhologist. Correction of EER 2024-25 #1 

Emond, Corine 08/12/2024 08/31/2024 DO To be paid monthly stipend of $2000 monthly for 
Psychologist intern substitute coverage. Pro ratead 2 
days a week for Mondays and Fridays at Macy 
Elementary and Meadow Green Elementary.  
Correction of EER 2024-25 #1 

Vega, Sanra 08/12/2024 08/23/2024 DO To be paid Long term rate of $250 daily as RSP 
teacher Olita Elementary. 

 
II. CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES    September 9, 2024   

 
 

A.           MONTHLY – GENERAL FUND 
 

B. HOURLY – GENERAL FUND 

 
NAME/  

EMPLOYEE ID# 
EFFECTIVE 

DATE 
END 

DATE 
RANGE/ 

STEP 
 

SITE 
 

COMMENTS 
 

Anaya, Arlene 08/16/24  R14/S03 EP Step Increase: IA/Early Learning 

Aparicio, Gina 08/16/24  R15/S03 MG Step Increase: Preschool IA SE/Mod 

Aragon, Yvonne 08/14/24  R14/S07 OL Step Increase: IA SESA 

Baek, Karen 08/08/24   DO New Hire: Psych Intern $2000/month. 
10 month employee 

Beiderwell, Alexis 08/16/24  R14/S03 MG Step Increase: IA Early Learning 



X-C1-5 

Bertch, Kelsey 08/19/24  CL MG 
R07/S03  

JO New Hire: Preschool Site Supervisor  

Brena, Lisa 08/05/24  R23/S07 MG Step Increase: School Office Manager 

Bretado, Evangelina 08/08/24   DO New Hire: Psych Intern $2000/month. 
10 month employee 

Brown, Matthew 08/16/24  R21/S08 JO Step Increase: Day Custodian 

Cacioppo, Sherrie 08/14/24  R07/S08 MG Step Increase: Cafeteria Worker 

Cardenas, Eva 08/15/24  R14/S03 JO Step Increase: IA Early Learning DLI 

Cardenas, Lauren 08/15/24  R15/S04 MA Step Increase: Child Development 
Assistant - Preschool 

Cardenas, Marina 08/29/24  CL CONF 
RN/S08 

DO Step Increase: Administrative 
Assistant/Admin Services CL HR 

Castro, Claudia 08/10/24  R16/S03 JO Step Increase: Clerk Typist 

Cauley, Krisha 08/13/24  R15/S02 JO New Hire: Health Technician 
3.75 hours/5 days/10 months 

Chavez, Debra 08/09/24   DO New Hire: Counseling Intern 
$1600/month. 10 month employee 

Corona, Michelle 08/13/24  R15/S03 MA New Hire: Instructional Aide 
3.75 hours/5 days/10 months 

Costello, Jennifer 08/17/24  R14/S07 MG Step Increase: Satellite Cafeteria Worker 

Coutts, Carrie 08/15/24  R16/S02 EP Step Increase: IA ABA 

Cramer, Samantha 08/08/24  R20/S03 JO Step Increase: Preschool Teacher 

Cristobal, Diane 08/09/24   DO New Hire: Counseling Intern 
$1600/month. 10 month employee 

Del Cid, Maria 08/17/24  R15/S05 JO Step Increase: IA Early Childhood 
Learning Link 

Daleo-DeSmith, Janet 08/14/24  NDA 
R01/S01 

MG New Hire: Noon Duty Aide 
1.25 hours/5 days/10 months 

Delorbe, Ruth 08/11/24   RS Longevity: 10 years Cafeteria Manager 

Delorbe, Ruth 08/11/24  R18/S04 RS Step Increase: Cafeteria Manager 

Dominguez, Martin 08/01/24  R21/S06 MG Promotion: Day Custodian  
8 hours/5 days/12 months 

Ebel, Sarah 08/15/24  R18/S02 MG Step Increase: Expanded Learning Site 
Coordinator 

Felix, Lisa 08/15/24  R20/S06 MA Step Increase: Library Media Technician 

Figgins, Brian 08/13/24  R15/S01 MA Promotion: Heath Technician 
3.75 hours/5 days/10 months 

Gaitan, Wendy 08/15/24  R07S03 OL Step Increase: Site Supervisor/Teacher - 
Preschool 

Garcia, Karina 08/09/24   DO New Hire: Counseling Intern 
$1600/month. 10 month employee 

Garcia, Lisa 08/08/24  R23/S05 OL Step Increase: School Office Manager 

Garcia, Melissa 08/16/24  R07/S07 JO Step Increase: Cafeteria Worker 

Gomez, Briana 08/08/24   DO New Hire: Psych Intern $2000/month. 
10 month employee 



X-C1-6 

Gonzalez, Jessica 08/09/24   DO New Hire: Counseling Intern 
$1600/month. 10 month employee 

Gonzalez, Kayla 08/14/24  R20/S05 OL Step Increase: Preschool Teacher  

Kim, Hannah 08/09/24  R16/S03 OL Step Increase: Clerk Typist 

Lawson, Jennifer 08/14/24  R14/S04 EP Step Increase: Satellite Cafeteria Worker 

Longo Gomez, Stephanie 08/15/24  R14/S02 EP Step Increase: IA Early Learning 

Lord, Dixie 08/07/24  R23/S08 RS Step Increase: School Office Manager 

Marquez, Angeline 08/08/24   DO New Hire: Psych Intern $2000/month. 
10 month employee 

Marquez Rodriguez, 
Francisco 

08/22/24  R21/S03 OL Step Increase: IA Se/Mod 

Martin, Jordan 08/12/24  CLMG DO Longevity: 5 years Occupational 
Therapist 

Martin, Jordan 08/12/24  CLMG 
R04/S08 

DO Step Increase: Occupational Therapist 

Mendez, Brittany Taylor 08/15/24  R30/S04 DO Step Increase: Speech/Language 
Pathology Assist. 

Mize, Kelly 08/14/24  R14/S08 EP Step Increase: IA RSP 

Mora, Jill 08/16/24  R14/S03 JO Step Increase: IA Early Learning 

Morales, Stephanie 08/13/24   MA Promotion: Substitute IA to Permanent 
IA 3.75 hours/5 days/10 months 

Mularkey, Diane 08/16/24  R14/S03 OL Step Increase: IA Early Learning 

Munoz, Rae Lynn 08/16/24  R14/S03 MA Step Increase: Ia Early Learning 

Nelson, Jamie 08/09/24   DO New Hire: Counseling Intern 
$1600/month. 10 month employee 

Neri, Allen 08/14/24  NDA 
R01/S01 

EP New Hire: Noon Duty Aide 
1.25 hours/5 days/10 months 

Noriega-Jimenez, Mar 08/08/24   DO New Hire: Psych Intern $2000/month. 
10 month employee 

Parra, David 08/08/24   DO New Hire: Psych Intern $2000/month. 
10 month employee 

Perez, Shari 08/22/24  R15/S04 OL Step Increase: IA Se/Mod 

Perez, Stephanie 08/01/24  R07/S03 MA Step Increase: Site Supervisor/Teacher - 
Preschool 

Qureshi, Lovely 08/16/24  R15/S03 OL Step Increase: Health Technician 

Ramos, Cash 08/01/24  R18/S02 JO New Hire: Night Custodian 
8 hours/5 days/12 months 

Rodriguez, Sierra 08/15/24  R14/S02 OL Step Increase: Child Development 
Assistant Preschool 

Sanchez, Alexandra 08/16/24  R14/S03 JO Step Increase: IA Early Learning 

Santana, Audrey 08/14/24  NDA 
R01/S01 

MA New Hire: Noon Duty Aide 
1.25 hours/5 days/10 months 

Sato, Kay 08/16/24  R14/S03 MA Step Increase: IA Se/Mod 

Skelton, Jason 08/08/24   DO New Hire: Psych Intern $2000/month. 
10 month employee 



X-C1-7 

Solorzano Fonseca, Casta 08/16/24  R14/S03 RS Step Increase: IA Se/Mod 

Spurgeon, Tamara 08/16/24  R14/S04 MG Step Increase: IA Early Learning 

Torres, Nicole 08/14/24   DO New Hire: Substitute Instructional Aide 

Vazquez, Maricela 08/13/24  R16/S07 EP Step Increase: IA ABA 

Vega-Arroyo, Alexis 08/13/24  R20/S03 OL New Hire: Preschool Teacher 

Villa, Johana 08/09/24   DO New Hire: Counseling Intern 
$1600/month. 10 month employee 

Villarino, Kathleen 08/15/24  R15/S06 MA Step Increase: IA Se/Mod 

Uribe Pelayo, Sandra 08/14/24  NDA 
R01/S01 

MG Promotion: From Substitute NDA to 
Permanent NDA  
1.25 hours/5 days/10 months 

Westerhold, Paul 08/15/24  R14/S03 RS Step Increase: IA RSP 

Zarate, Laurie 08/12/24  R20/S05 MB Promotion: Preschool Teacher/Learning 
Links 
 

 
 






















